


ZONOLITE

LIGHTWEIGHT INSULATING PRODUCTS SAVE
LABOR AND STRUCTURAL STEEL

Plaster Aggregate :-: Finish Aggregate
Stabilized Concrete Aggregate :-: Acoustical Plastic
Home Insulation :-: Zonatile

ZONOLITE, A South Carolina product made of Vermiculite mined
near Greenville, effected a saving of more than $30,000.00 in the
cost of fireproofing the CORNELL ARMS, Columbia, South Carolina.

OTHER REPRESENTATIVE SOUTH CAROLINA
BUILDINGS INCLUDE:

T. B. Hospital, Florence—Arch. LaFaye, LaFaye & Fair
Headquarters Fire Station, Columbia—Arch. Heyward S. Singley
Aiken House, Florence—Arch. Reid Hearn

Bob Jones University, Greenville—Arch. James Gaunt

Self Memorial Hospital, Greenwood—Arch. H. C. Hemphill

Cornell Arms, Columbia Tuomey Hospital, Sumter,—Arch. James & Durant
Architects: Stork and Lyles Anderson Jr. High School, Anderson—Arch. Charles Fant
Bissett, Carlisle and Wolff Health Center, Saluda—Arch. G. Thomas Harmon
Columbia, S. C. 1611 Candler Bldg. Greenville, S. C.
Atlanta, Ga.

A TYPICAL INSTALLATION OF

ZONATILE

The new, lightweight roof slab developed
for installation over Bar Joists and Sub-
Purlins. ZONATILE does the whole job in
one application! Costs are Reduced! The
underside is attractively finished, frequent-
ly eliminating the need of additional ceil-
ing below. Made with Zonolite Brand
Vermiculite, a 100% fireproof mineral, it
will not burn, rot, or decompose. It can
be installed during any season.
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The Emblem
of Distinction

This, the emblem of the Associated Gen-
eral Contractors of America, has been ac-
cepted by engineers, architects, public officials,
and others having to do with construction, as
a mark of distinction and a reasonable guar-
antee of the skill, integrity, and responsibility
of the General Contractor who displays it.

HEAVY and HIGHWAY BUILDING
CONSTRUCTION CONSTRUCTION
Build by contract and be safe

Carelinas Branch

THE ASSOCIATED GENERAL
CONTRACTORS OF AMERICA, INC.

ROBERT PATTEN
Managing Director

Builders Bldg. - 1639 Blanding Street - Columbia, S. C.
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CLECKLEY & McGEE, INC. FARMER'S CONCRETE
PRODUCTS, INC.

General Contractors

EDISTONE-BLOX

Building Materials of All Kinds

Cannon Bridge Road

ORANGEBURG, S. C. ORANGEBURG, SOUTH CAROLINA

RUSCON CONSTRUCTION COMPANY

Eum,, GENERAL CONTRACTORS & ENGINEERS
%'q»mmﬂ‘ Commercial, Industrial and Housing Construction
| PHONE 6644 149 EAST BAY STREET

R. B.
F. S. CONRAD, JR.
CHARLESTON, S. C.

BRYANT-DAVIS ELECTRIC COMPANY

Electrical Contractors Lighting
Industrial and and
Commercial Power

P. O. Box 1753 :-: Tel. 2-1816

GREENVILLE, SOUTH CAROLINA
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Recognition For The Living

ARCHITECTS are an odd lot—not so much by personality as by profession.

In them, in the good ones, are combined the practicality of the business man
and the sensitivity of the artist. In them are met the demands of beauty and of
utility, two things which do not always go hand in hand. And, to an extent
characteristic of few other professions, they labor in the present for judgment
in the future,

All too frequently, that judgment comes so far in the future that it goes
unheard by the long-departed architects for whom it is intended. And too often
it is that architects have good grounds for complaining that they, like the pro-
verbial Indians, occupy a status wherein “the only good ones are the dead ones.”

Fortunately for mid-century South Carolina, there are many good ones
alive and kicking—and their handiworks are in ample evidence on every side.
The state’s resurgence in industry, commerce, business and even in agriculture
has brought new opportunity and new challenge to architects. Greater pride in
public buildings, whether they be for education or administration, has fostered
designs of improved appearance and efficiency. Hospitals, churches, and private
residences likewise are bringing into play the wide range of present day archi-
tectural talents.

There are extremists in the architectural field of today, ranging from the
“colyum post” traditionalists of yesterday to the glass brick modernists of
tomorrow, but in between is the great body of the profession—men who give
balanced but imaginative thought to considerations of form, shape, locale, ma-
terial, function, and cost. These are the men by whom the builders of today
will be judged tomorrow. These are the composers of what has so aptly been
described as the “frozen masic” of architecture.

The lives and works of their contemporaries will fade away with time, while
the architects can rest secure with this bit of solace from the pen of John Ruskin:

“We may live without architecture, and worship without her, but we cannot
remember without her.”

Realizing that the future will take care of itself, the South Carolina Magazine
presents this issue with the conviction that true merit warrants recognition in

the present.
W.D. W.
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Our Thanks

We wish to extend our sincere thanks
to our advertisers, who have helped make
this issue the largest one we have ever
produced, and to the South Carolina
Chapter of the American Institute of
Architects for their interest and coopera-
tion. Layouts for the section on con-
temporary architecture were designed by
Mary Frances Anderson, staff editor. En-
gravings were made by Artcraft Engrav-
ing Company of Atlanta and Carolina
Engraving Company of Columbia, print-
ing by The State Commercial Printing

Company, Columbia.

THE COVER

The cover design was created by Gil-
mer Petroff, of the firm of William G.
Lyles, Bissett, Carlisle and Wolff, in
a portrayal of the spirit of architec-
ture in its more modern conception. Such
symbols as the fire-place, planting bin,
window-wall, and modular grid were used

as the basis for the design.
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Colonial Iron Works
CENTRAL CONCRETE AND PLASTER CO. Incorparated

Plaster Contractors For: Modernfold Doors and
Steel Stairs

Sumter Highway
Elk’s Club, Greenville, S. C. COLUMBIA, SOUTH CAROLINA

A. R. P. Church, Anderson, S. C.

PHONE 65
CENTRAL, SOUTH CAROLINA I-- G- FERGUSON

General Painting Contractor

Clemson House, Clemson, S. C.

Incorporated

10 Gillon Street
Charleston, South Carolina

Columbia Lumber & Mfg. Co.

ESTABLISHED 1898

COLUMBIA, SOUTH CAROLINA

Fred G. Brothers

Manufacturers of Architectural Millwork and Lumber

Distributors of Stock Woodwork & Building Materials General Painting Contractor
We're proud to have been
COLUMBIA COOLING & HEATING CO., CURTIS WOODWORK the painting contractor for
DIVISION DEPARTMENT the CLEMSON HOUSE shown
CHRYSLER AIRTEMP. COMPLETE SERVICE elsewhere in this issue.
AIR CONDITIONING & HEATING CURTIS STOCK MILLWORK
103 Elsie Avenue
Co-opefating with Architects and .Contractors of the Phone 5-3237
South in the Proper Use of Architectural and Stock
Millwork Since 1898 GREENVILLE, S. C.

Harllee-Quattlebaum
Construction
Company

Engineers and Contractors

Commercial and Institutional
Construction

1301 W. Palmetto St.
Florence, South Carolina

Florence Fire Station—Constructed by Harllee-Quattlebaum Construction Company.
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Oconee Station Guard House, Oconee County.

(From “‘Beneath So Kind A Sky,'’ published by the University of South Carolina Press)

The Evolution of Architecture
In South Carolina

Eorror’s Nore: The South Carolina
Magazine is proud to present for the first
time in this magasine Beatrice St. J. Ravenel.
Miss Ravenel is a well-known South Caro-
lina writer and is particularly noted for her
book “Charleston Architecture?” She is an
honorary member of the South Carolina
Chapter of the American Institute of Archi-
tects.

NE of the happiest things about the

architecture of South Carolina is its
statewide distribution. Buildings of merit
are confined to no one section, You find
them in the Up Country and the Low
Country, the Pee Dee region and the
lands along the Savannah River, in met-
ropolitan Columbia and in villagy Bluff-
ton. It is true that Charleston and its
surrounding plantations have the larger
part of this heritage and have attracted
the lion’s share of attention, but dozens
of communities exist where local archi-
tectural remains would well repay investi-
gation. Some of these buildings are cher-
ished showplaces while others are in a
condition of ruinous neglect, but there
they stand, and the traveler who comes

upon them unexpectedly has a thrill

which is by no means small,
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Nor should you overlook the excellent
modern buildings which in the last dec-
ade have been going up all over the state.
They prove that architecture in South
Carolina belongs to the present as well as
to the past.

For all practical purposes, the architec-
tural history of the state begins with the
English, although they were not the first
Furopeans to attempt settlement here.
The Spaniards planted a brief-lived col-
ony somewhere near Winyah Bay in
1526 and later built a series of fortified
missions along the coast, but there is
no scrap of masonry in the state which
one can attribute with, any certainty to
them. The same is true of the French
who were on Parris Island in 1562,

The English arrived in 1670. On Al-
bemarle Point on the west bank of the
Ashley River, opposite the present site
of Charleston, these first successful col-
onists built dwellings protected on the
land side by “pallisadoes”. The latter
were constructed according to the ap-
proved 17th century method of fortifica-
tion, so that every part could be pro-
tected by gunfire from another part, “One
Angle shall cleare another,” is the way
Governor West described it. Nearby, on
the other side of a small creek, a little
star-shaped palisade was built.

By Beatrice St. J. Ravenel

Photos by Garl Julien

The colonists on the Ashley included
carpenters and were well supplied with
carpenters’ and joiners’ tools, nails and
crosscut and other saws, The houses
they erected were frame buildings, not log
cabins, which were introduced into the
colony only some years later. These
early structures were laid out haphaz-
ardly according to no particular street
plan and varied in height but were alike
in that each had a trellis for grapes.

The little settlement at Kiawah was
soon abandoned and by 1680, Charles
Town, or as we say, Charleston, was ris-
ing on “the Oyster Point” between the
Ashley and the Cooper, its present site.
As a matter of fact, a house or so had
stood there as early as 1671. At first
wood was practically the only material. Tt
even required special laws to enforce the
use of brick for chimneys, which means
that wattle-and-daub or perhaps lath-and-
plaster chimneys were in use, presenting
a considerable fire hazard. By 1682 a
small quantity of good brick was being
made. Next year, a traveler could write
of the Charlestonians, “already they be-
gin to live handsomely, Building good
Houses.”

In 1686, a settler of Dutch origin put
up at Medway plantation a one-story
brick building with crow-stepped gables
reminiscent of the street facades of his
native land. This dwelling (grown up-
wards and sideways) now is the oldest
house in South Carolina. Its appear-
ance shows that it was designed with
thought and taste, a desire to please the
eye as well as to provide shelter.

To look at Medway, one could easily
imagine that when it was erected, the
frontier phase of building was over. Such
a conclusion would, of course, be wrong.
The Carolina frontier was long a flexible
matter. In the Low Country, it lasted
through the Yemassee War of 1715, and
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J. M. Lawton
Sec.-Treas.

Carolina Heating
Alfred Lawton
CO.’ lnC. President

S—
HEATING CONTRACTORS

GENERAL ENGINEERING CORPORATION

Builders of Schools, Commercial, Industrial
S and Residential Buildings

Phone 3-6234 FLORENCE, SOUTH CAROLINA

1310 Legare St.
COLUMBIA, S. C.

L . S o

TIDEWATER
CONCRETE BLOCK
& PIPE CO.

King St. Extn. at 5 Mile

for building identification
that “sells” for you every day -

CHARLESTON, S. C. - designed to follow lettering of any established signature . .
to meet architects’ specifications.

¢« +

A PERMANENT INVESTMENT:

Letters in stainless steel, welded or cast aluminum,
plastic, neon. Colonial-Hites Company craftsmen are
creators of welded aluminum lttters and welded alumi-
num letters with plastic faces . . . pioneers in cast
aluminum letters in the South. Their experience and

C. G. SHOCKLEY reputation is your guarantee of quality.
Construction Co.

e COLONIAL-HITES COMPANY

228 PARSON STREET -t WEST COLUMBIA, S. C.

2020 Blanding St.— Phone 2-4385
COLUMBIA, S. C.

SOUTH CAROLINA MAGAZINE, JANUARY, 1952




in the Up Country, until after the Amer-
ican Revolution. Just about the time
Medway was being built, log houses, the
kind of buildings most generally asso-
ciated with pioneers, were first being in-
troduced into South Carolina, They
made their appearance here thanks to
John Stewart, a Scot who had traveled
in Russia, where they had been in com-
mon use for centuries,

Stewart, to wuse his own words,
“preach'd up” log houses, with the result
that Sir Nathanial Johnson built one
50 feet long to house his silk-rais-
ing experiments. Made without nails,
which were handwrought and expensive Borough House, Stateburg.
in those days, it cost only 15 pounds. It
is paradoxical that what was probably the
first log house in this colony was an in-
dustrial building, rather than a frontiers-
man’s cabin, but South Carolina archi-
tecture contains a good many surprises.

About half a century later, when
Scotch-Irish settlers began to come over-
land into the Carolina Up Country, from
more northernly settlements, they too
built log houses, but it is likely that they
brought the knowledge with them, having
learned it from the Pennsylvania Ger-
mans,

While on this subject of the frontier,
one should not forget the colonial forts.
Their descriptions ought to each us one
thing at least—not to generalize. Earth-
en ramparts topped by a stockade were
used at Fort Prince George (you will
find the site in Pickens County); six-
inch plank nailed to lightwood posts, at
Fort Moore, on the Savannah; tabby, a
mixture of oyster shells, pressed into
shape between boards, at Port Royal,
near Beaufort.

Then there were the fortified dwell-
ings, of which the most notable was Mul-
berry, on Cooper River. This structure,
which still stands, was built of brick in
1714. Its almost square core is guarded
by four little flanking towers, one at
each corner, and it is of record that can-
non were mounted within its walls dur-
ing the Yemassee War. But Mulberry,
even with its loopholes for muskets, is
alien to the frontier in spirit. It is much
too sophisticated with its lavish use of
Jacobean curves in its rooflines. Prob-
ably Mulberry’s first owner, Thomas
Broughton, was as astounded as anyone
else when he found his ornamental little
flankers really manned with soldiers and
facing a savage enemy.

The case is different with Oconee Sta-
tion guardhouse, a fieldstone structure,
also fortunately still in existence. Erect-
ed in 1760, in what is now Oconee Coun-
ty, it was intended for defense against
the Cherokees. The guardhouse is a

sturdy, unpretentious, rectangular struc- e LIRS PR s IR T o7 I it e T A
ture, two and a half stories high. It is Manigault House, Charleston.
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Theological Seminary Building, Columbia. (Robert Mills).

not hard here to imagine the whizz of
arrows, the war whoops and the gun-
smoke curling up outside the loopholes.

The frontier phase of our architecture
has attracted little attention,
but it should not be entirely overlooked;
it is part of our heritage.

relatively

Backwoods structures aside, the build-
ings of colonial South Carolina followed
English trends, with but a slight borrow-
ing from other sources. We have seen
how a Dutchman built Medway, and a
faint Netherlandish influence came via
England, after the accession of William
ITI. Some authorities find a French
flavor in the plans of several Low Coun-
try buildings, including Medway and
Mulberry, and believe Huguenot settlers
were responsible. Other writers beg to
differ, emphatically, but think a
Trench spirit may be traced in such
matters as good taste, balance and ele-
gance. It was British leadership, how-
ever, which early South Carolina archi-
tects followed, with fidelity and consid-
Their work was character-
ized by the richness and vigor of Georg-
ian baroque, sometimes mingled, in the
later examples, with a decided debt to
Chippendale in the decoration. The or-
der and consistency of English houses
of the Georgian period were reflected, in
no weak manner, by the buildings here,
all through colonial days.

most

erable skill.
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The Colonial is the first of five main
divisions which, without being unduly
arbitrary, it is convenient to make in con-
sidering the architecture of the state. The
others are Post-Revolutionary (during
which the Adam style was belatedly im-
ported); Ante-Bellum (heyday of the
Classic Revival); Post-Bellum, which
produced comparatively little of wvalue,
and Modern.

During the colonial period, three ports,
Beaufort, Charleston and Georgetown,
and three inland settlements, Camden,
Ninety-Six and Cheraw, were the foci of
civilization in South Carolina. The orig-
inal town of Ninety-Six has just about
disappeared so that one can only guess at
its characteristics, but one knows enough
of the others to say that they followed
English styles but did not lack individ-
ualistic touches.

Often this divergence from the model
provides added interest. Thus, Charles-
ton is characterized by “single houses”,
designed for more elab-
orate “double houses” and by an empha-
sis on piazzas, balconies and ornamental
ironwork, In Beaufort the use of tabby
is outstanding.
apt to have their piazzas supported by
square or octagonal posts instead of col-
umns. At Stateburg (a community which
came into brief prominence after the
Revolution but existed as a sparse set-

coolness, and

Georgetown houses are

tlement long before) terre pise, (packed
earth) was employed as a building mate-
rial.

Of the men responsible for the excel-
lent work of colonial days, all too little
is known. Architects, as the term now
is used, scarcely existed in the American
colonies, the nearest approach being an
occasional gifted amateur. There were,
however, master builders, who could fur-

nish plans, sometimes original, some-
times copied or adapted from a hand-
book. The creditable results show that

these men, their workmen and the public
undoubtedly
sessed a high degree of good taste.

who emploved them pos-

Traditionally, the owners had much to
do with the design of eighteen century
houses in this colony. Probably this was
true in some instances but it could not
have been so in all. The real architects
of much of the best work remain anony-

mous.

To these unknown artists we owe
Drayton Hall, built in 1738, a large villa
in the Palladian manner; Fenwick Hall,
Middleton Place, Hampton and other
handsome plantation mansions. To them
we owe the Huger, Horry, William
Washington and a host of other notable
houses in Charleston. Neither can any-
one identify the designers of the Bor-
ough House at Stateburg; Prince
George's Church, Winyah, at George-
town, or St. David’s Church, at Cheraw,
to list only a few choice examples of co-
lonial buildings.

Yet, although most of the early work
was anonymous, a few names have come
to light. In 1698, one Mr. Johns, a
master builder, was reported to be on his

way from England to help rebuild
Charleston which had suffered a disas-
trous fire. Whether he ever arrived is
uncertain. Old St. Andrew’s Church,

on the Ashley River, a brick structure be-
gun in 1704, bears the initials of its
“supervisors”, John Fitch and Thomas
Rose. William and Zachariah
Villepontoux had something, it is im-
possible to say just how much, to do with
building Pompion (pronounced Punkin)
Hill Chapel, built 1763 beside the Cooper
River. Francis Villepontoux, Zachariah’s
nephew, and A. Howard were “super-
visors” for building St. Stephen’s Church,
in 1767, at St. Stephens. Various
draughtsmen advertised that they would
draw house plans, and in 1744, the term
architect was applied posthumously to
John Wood, who seems to have been
the first person in South Carolina to have
been so called, but whether he deserved
it is a question.

More is known of Samuel Cardy, who
built St. Michael’s Church, begun in
1752, in Charleston, and probably was its
architect. It seems likely that he drew

Axson
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his inspiration from a design by the
English architect, James Gibbs. Cardy
also built and presumably designed a
lighthouse.

With William Rigby Naylor, Cardy's
son-in-law, one is on firmer ground. Nay-
lor drew and signed the plans for the
Exchange, which still stands in Charles-
ton, though shorn of its handsome por-
tico and otherwise battered. The Horl-
beck brothers were its builders. Nay-
lor is the first South Carolina architect
who is known to have drawn a plan to
be carried out by others. However, he
worked as a contractor also. Aided by a
partner, he built a watch house, or as it
would be called now, a police station,
which he had designed. A versatile man,
he was also a bridgebuilder and surveyor
and advertized that he would teach archi-
tecture. He died in 1773.

A contemporary of Naylor’s was Ezra
Waite, “Civil Architect, House-builder
in general, and Carver, from London,”
who designed the decoration and perhaps
the plan of the magnificent Miles Brew-
ton House, in Charleston. This was
probably the best, as it was among the
last, of the great houses built in this
colony on the eve of the American Rev-
olution,

This conflict naturally brought an
abrupt stop to construction, which hard-
ly recommenced for years afterward,
while the war-ravaged state recovered
from its wounds. By the 1790’s, how-
ever, cotton in the Up Country and rice
in the coastal area brought a return of
wealth, The result was a spurt in build-
ing, which also received an impetus by
the change of the state capital from
Charleston to the new city of Columbia.
Not only a State House but a college
building an dwellings were required.

The State House, still unfinished when
the legislators first met in it in 1790,
was designed by Irish-born James Ho-
ban, who only two years later was to
achieve national notice as architect of
the White House at Washington. Hoban
seems to have been in South Carolina
as early as 1787. The State House, of
wood on a high brick basement story,
had a pedimented, four-columned por-
tico and at least one Palladian window.
Sherman’s army burned it in 1865,

The first building for the South Caro-
lina College (now the University of South
Carolina) was constructed by Edward
Clark, of Columbia. Its design was
adapted by the building committee in
1802 from two plans, one offered by
Clark and the other by a young man des-
tined to make his mark a little later—
Robert Mills.

While on the subject of Columbia, one
should not forget the “Columbia cot-

(Continued on Page 83)
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N OUR element
about which very little has been writ-
ten is the formation, growth and activi-
ties of the professional The
doctors were the first to organize for the
sake of self-improvement and the better-

national history an

societies.

ment of their service to the public. The
American Medical Association  was
formed in 1847—just a few years more

than a century ago. The civil engineers

were next, in 1852, and their first organi-
the architects; it
known as the American Society of Civil
Engineers and Architects. Five
later the architects formed the nucleus of
what soon became their national profes-
sional body, The American Institute of
Architects. Curiously enough, the law-
Yers, plentiful in the early
the republic and so active in its govern-
ment, did not organize the American Bar
Association until 1878.

zation included was

years

SO days of

During the first fifty vears of our life
as a nation, the building needs were fair-
ly simple—dwellings, town halls, court-
houses, churches, for the most part, and

the master builders of those days im-
provised very well indeed, relying on
their memories of old-world forms and

leaning heavily on books of details that
were sent over from England and, later,
written and published by a few of our
own highly skilled carpenters and wood
carvers,

But from about 1850 to 1870, with the
rapidly increasing scope of our needs
aided by our infatuation with the ma-
chine, particularly the scroll saw, our ar-
chitecture fell to what now seems an all-
time low—the Dark Ages of architecture
in the United States. Yet it was in this
period of dim thinking, when public re-
gard for technical knowledge and orderli-
ness was at such a low ebb, that twelve
architects met in New York City to con-
sider how they might improve their indi-
vidual competence by sharing knowledge
and experience, and thus become better
able to serve society as it unknowingly
deserved to served. So barren
the field, even in the country’s largest
metropolis, that the twelve founders were
hard put to it to find eighteen others of
sufficient competence to share their re-
sponsibility in organizing the new tech-
nical body. Today, in 1950, there are
about 19,000 persons who have been ex-
amined and found worthy to be registered
by the wvarious states as competent to
practice architecture.

be was

It is interesting to examine the aims
of this little group. One might expect
emphasis on the architects might
benefit themselves in a society that
seemed rather unsympathetic with, if not
actually contemptuous of, this small
member of the professions. But no, the
emphasis is placed upon how the archi-
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how

Glenn Stanton of Portland, Oregon, national president of the American Institute of Architects,
shown as he addressed a meeting of North and South Carolina Architects in Columbia in November.

(Photo by Munn and Teal Studios.)

The American Institute
of Architects

tect could better serve society. Here are
the objects of The Institute as set forth
in the forefront of its by-laws:

The objects of The American Institute
of Architects shall be to organize and
unite in fellowship the architects of the
United States of America; to combine
their efforts so as to promote the aesthet-
ic, scientific, and practical efficiency of

the profession; to advance the science

and art of planning and building by ad-
vancing the standards of architectural
education, training, and practice; to co-
ordinate the building industry and the
profession of architecture to insure the
advancement of the living standards of
our people through their improved en-
vironment; and to make the profession of
ever-increasing service to society.

The War Between the States soon fol-
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lowed the founding of The Institute, and,
while preventing meetings, was not able
to quench the smoldering spark. By
1869 Philadelphia had a chapter, then
Boston, Cincinnati and Baltimore. A San
Francisco chapter, one in Washington,
D. C,, one in Michigan and one in central
New York State were organized by 1887,
and The Institute had begun the publica-
tion of its proceedings—technical papers
and discussions sharing the growing
knowledge.

Meanwhile another group had come in-
to existence in and about Chicago—the
Western Association of Architects. But
in 1889, at a Cincinnati convention, the
two bodies were merged, retaining the
name of the earlier organization, The
American Institute of Architects, in
which there were now 814 members. New
chapters were added—Buffalo, St. Louis,
Kansas City, Cleveland, Pittsburgh, Cen-
tral Ohio, Worcester, Minnesota, Colo-
rado, Southern California, Washington
State, Brooklyn—all by 1894, and The
Institute was a growing force toward bet-
ter relationships with private client and
government bureaus, and an architecture
now worthy of the name.

An important result of The Institute's
activities were the new laws being en-
acted by the states, based on the police
power to protect public safety, health and
welfare, requiring evidence of compe-
tence before issuing a license to use the

title architect. Illinois, California and
New Jersey were the pioneers in this
movement, which now has been incor-

porated in the laws of all but two of the
48 states.

It is unlikely that we shall ever have a
federal license law—the states jealously
guard their constitutional rights to regu-
late activities within their borders as they
individually see fit. Nevertheless, the
state registration boards have set up, with
The Institute's aid, a National Council
of Architectural Registration Boards with
the aim of achieving some uniformity of
requirements among themselves and also
facilitating admission to interstate prac-
tice.

All state registration laws require that
a person seeking to perform architectural
service and to have the privilege of using
the title of architect shall qualify and
fully demonstrate his competence—just
as young doctors must submit to exam-
ination by their local medical boards.
And, just as the young doctor must serve
a specified term as intern, so the pros-
pective architect must show not only
educational fitness but also a term of
years, usually three, of practical expe-
rience in an architect’s office. If the
candidate lacks his degree from an ap-
proved architectural school (which now
means successfully completing a five-year
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course in college or university), most
states will accept a much longer period
of practical experience, usually twelve
years. All such safeguards against inex-
perienced or otherwise incompetent prac-
titioners have come about through the
continued efforts of The Institute to
maintain the practice of architecture up-
on the highest professional plane. Almost
all the states recognize the vital fact that
architectural practice is a personal mat-
ter. Thus, a corporation cannot practice,
and, in the case of a firm, all members
must be individually licensed if their
names are to appear on letterhead or
drawings.

Since the young architects, added year-
ly to the profession, must reflect the
character of the schools in which they
are taught. The Institute undertook, in
1942, the task of improving the standards
of architectural education. The National
Architectural Accrediting Board is the
instrument with which this work is be-
ing carried forward. Through actual in-
spection by visiting experts, a school is
measured against accepted criteria. The
Board appraises the objective phases of
the school—faculty, student body, curric-
ulum, financial support. It also weighs
the questions of how well the school uses
its resources and tools, how successful
it is in turning out the sort of young
men who will best serve the public and
maintain the high plane of ethics that is
an Institute requirement of its members.
A List of Accredited Schools is published
periodically, from which list some schools
may be dropped, others admitted. It
will be seen that the Board and The In-
stitute are thus exercising a tremendous
responsibility in the interests of the ar-
chitectural profession.

What are this profession’s functions?
What does this man, the architect, do?
You might answer: “He makes the draw-
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John Carroll, Myrtle Beach. Louis S. Booth, Spartanburg. William A. Carlisle, Columbia. T. J. Bissett, Columbia.

The §. C. Chapter of
The AIA

P s,

i, 2 / 14 & g " A
J. W. Cunningham, Sumter. Cornelius T. Cummings, Charleston. W. E. DuRant, Sumter. Carl E. Epting, Jr., Greenville,
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H. Reid Hearn, Jr., Columbia, Henry D. Harrall, Bennettsville. Marion B. Halsey, Charleston. G. Thomas Harmon, Columbia.

F. V. Hopkins, Florence. J. F. James, Sumter. Robert S. James, Sumter. James C. Hemphill, Greenwood.
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J. D. McCall, Jr., Columbia. G. E. Lafaye, Jr., Columbia. Robert S. Lafaye, Columbia. Samuel Lapham, Charleston,

Walter F. Petty, Columbia. Ralph H. McPherson, Greenville. C. Hardy Oliver, Columbia. John A. McPherson, Greenville.
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Heyward Singley, Columbia. Albert Simons, Charleston. Charles N. Robertson, Lancaster. Thomas H. Voshell, Charleston.

Prof. John H. Gates, Clemson. C. W. Fant, Anderson. W. E. Freeman, Jr., Greenville. Herndon M. Fair, Columbia,

- 2

William R. Ward, Greenville. Harold Woodward, Spartanburg.  Louis M. Wolff, Columbia.
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The following corporate members of the South
Carolina Chapter of the American Institute of Archi-
tects did not submit pictures:

James D. Beacham, Greenville; Abel H. Chapman,
Jr., Spartanburg; Alex A. Dickson, Columbia; Samuel
B. Earle, Jr., Anderson; Kaare 8. Espedahl, Columbia;
Edward P. Guerard, Columbia; Robert E. Holroyd,
dr., Columbia; Lew R. Hoyt, Columbia; WWilliam M.
Hudson, Spartanburg; John M. Lambert, Jr., Ander-
son; Rudolph E. Lee, Greenville; John M. L. ineberger,
Greenville; Ralph Little, Camden; W. G. Lyles,
Columbia; C. R. MacDonald, Greenville; Henry A,
Rippelmeyer, Columbia; James F. Spellman, Greens
ville; Henry P. Staats, Charleston; Robert C. Stork,
Columbia; William Stork, Jr., Columbia; Robert I
Upshur, Columbia; James B. Urquhart, ©Columbia;
A. Rorke Vanston, Columbia.
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Thomas G. Clemson Sculpture Panel, V. A.
Building, Columbia. Edmond Amateis, Brewster,
N. Y., Sculptor.

Sculpture, Clemson House, Clemson.
Willard Hirsch, Charleston, Sculptor.
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Mural, Beth Elohim Tabernacle, Charleston.
“Founding of Beth Elohim”, William Halsey,
Charleston, Artist.

Mural, Beth Elohim Tabernacle, Charleston.
“Patriots of Beth Elohim”. William Halsey,
Charleston, Artist.

Sculpture, William G. Lyles, Bissett, Carlisle
and Wolff Office Building, Columbia. William
Hirsch, Charleston, Sculptor.
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Nativity Rose Window, St. John's Episcopal Church, Columbia. Executed by Henry Lee Willett, Philadelphia, Pa.

>

The South Carolina Magazine in cooperation with the South
g P

Carolina Chapter of The American Institute of Architecture

presents the best in contemporary architecture in South Carolina
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C. Y. THOMASON RESIDENCE, Greenwood

Architect: James C. Hemphill, Greenwood

General Contractor: C. Y. Thomason Construction Company, Greenwood, AGC




HUFFSTETLER RESIDENCE, Orangeburg

Architect: G. Thomas Harmon, Columbia

General Contractor: J. C. Kinsey, Walterboro
Photos by Joseph W. Molitor, New York




JOHN M. LAMBERT, JR., RESIDENCE, Anderson
Architect: John M, Lambert, Jr., Anderson
Photo by Richard Castleberry, Jr., Anderson

J. W. KEISTLER RESIDENCE, Great Falls

Architect: Charles N. Robinson, Lancaster

General Contractor: Carl W. Mullins Lumber Company, Lancaster, AGC
Photo by Joseph W. Molitor, New York




A. J. CROMER RESIDENCE, Anderson
Architect: Charles William Fant, Anderson

General Contractor:

Cromer & Sullivan Construction Company, Anderson, AGC
Photo by Joseph W. Molitor, New York

COMMANDER HANS K, KOEBIG RESIDENCE, Charleston
Architects: Simons & Lapham, Charleston




H. R. BURG RESIDENCE, Columbia
Architects: William G. Lyles, Bissett, Carlisle & Wolff, Columbia

General Contractor: M. B. Kahn Construction Company, Columbia, AGC

Photos by Joseph W. Molitor, New York




WILLIAM H. COGSWELL RESIDENCE, Charleston
Architects: Halsey & Cummings, Charleston
General Contractor: C. W. Blanchard, Charleston

55

J. U, McKETHAN RESIDENCE, Charleston
Architects: Halsey & Cummings, Charleston

General Contractor: Dotterer Engineering Company, Charleston AGC
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JOSEPH H. FRANCIS RESIDENCE, Great Falls

Architect: Charles N, Robinson, Lancaster

General Contractor: Belk Construction Company, Lancaster
Photo by Joseph W. Molitor, New York



HUGH AIKEN RESIDENCE, Greenville
Architect: William R. Ward, Greenville

General Contractor: G. M. Cox and Company, Greenville

Photo by Gillespie-Cole, Greenville




W. J. ERWIN RESIDENCE, Ware Shoals
Architect: Charles William Fant, Anderson

General Contractor: Regal Textile Corp., Ware
Shoals

Photo by Joseph W. Molitor, New York
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J. W. PICKENS RESIDENCE, Orangeburg
Architect: James C. Hemphill, Greenwood

General Contractor: Evans Construction Company, Cameron




T. M. MARCHANT, JR., SUMMER RESIDENCE, Ceasar's Head

Architect: W. E. Freeman, Jr., Greenville




Architect: W, E. Freeman, Jr., Greenville

General Contractor: E. M. Hollingsworth, Greenville

W. KENT PRAUSE, JR., RESIDENCE, Charleston
Architects: Halsey & Cummings, Charleston

|
|
W. H. RICHARDSON RESIDENCE, Greenville
General Contractor: Youngblood Company, Charleston
|
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REAR PATIO, W. E. FREEMAN, JR., RESIDENCE, Greenville

Architect: W. E. Freeman, Jr., Greenville

General Contractor: E. M. Hollingsworth, Greenville

Photo by Joseph W. Molitor, New York




HYMAN J. MEDDIN RESIDENCE, Charleston

Architects: Halsey & Cummings, Charleston
General Contractor: C, W, Blanchard, Charleston
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M. F. KORN RESIDENCE, Sumter

Architects: James & DuRant, Sumter

General Contractor: R, L. Burgess, Sumter
Photo by Joseph W. Molitor, New York




W. G. LYLES RESIDENCE, Columbia

Architects: William G. Lyles, Bissett, Carlisle & Wolff, Columbia
General Contractor: Lyles & Lang Construction Company, Columbia, AGC
Photos by Joseph W. Molitor, New York




JAMES A. MATTISON RESIDENCE, Belton
Architect: William R. Ward, Greenville

General Contractor: S. S. Smith, Belton
Photo by Gillespie-Cole, Greenville



DR. RANDOLPH C. CHARLES RESIDENCE, Bennettsville
Architect: H. D. Harrall, Bennettsville

General Contractor: H. J. Munnerlyn, Bennettsville

H. N. ESTRIDGE RESIDENCE, Lancaster

Architect: Charles N. Robinson, Lancaster

General Contractor: Carl W. Mullis Lumber Com-
pany, Lancaster, AGC

Photo by Joseph W. Molitor, New York
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J. E. MAYES RESIDENCE, Mayesville
Architect: J. Whitney Cunningham, Sumter

General Contractor: T, B, Fort (Deceased), Mayesville




OFFICE OF DR. J. D. GILLAND, Conway
Architect: J. Whitney Cunningham, Sumter

General Contractor: Hardee and Vereen, Myrtle Beach




MAYFLOWER RESTAURANT BUILDING, Sumter
Architect: ). Whitney Cunningham, Sumter

General Contractor: Avery Lumber Company, Sumter, AGC
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LOURIE'S STORE, Columbia
Architect: H. Reid Hearn, Jr., Columbia

General Contractor: M. B. Kahn Construction Company, Columbia, AGC
Photo of Renovation by Joseph W. Molitor, New York
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SALES AND SERVICE BUILDING, OLIVER
MOTOR COMPANY, Columbia

Architects: C. Hardy Oliver and Oliver and
Dickson (1946-1950)

General Contractor: John C. Heslep Company,
Columbia, AGC

Photo by B. L. McGraw, Columbia

NU-IDEA SCHOOL SUPPLY COMPANY, Sumter
Architects: James & DuRant, Sumter

General Contractor: Avery Lumber Company, Sumter, AGC
Photo by Joseph W. Malitor, New York

B. L. MONTAGUE COMPANY, INC. BUILD-
ING, Charleston

Architects: James & DuRant, Sumter

General Contractor: Skinner & Ruddock, Charles-
ton, AGC



ELKS CLUB, Greenville

Greenville

Architect: William R. Ward,

Morris Construction Company, Greenville, AGC

Photo by Gillespie-Cole, Greenville

General Contractor:




GLOVER APARTMENTS AND SHOPPING CENTER, Orangeburg
Architect: H. Reid Hearn, Jr,, Columbia
General Contractor: M. B. Kahn Construction Company, Columbia, AGC




WESTOVER FABRICS, INC., BUILDING, Honea Path
Architects: William G. Lyles, Bissett, Carlisle & Wolff, Columbia

General Contractor: Daniel Construction Company, Inc., Greenville, AGC
Photo of Sketch by Alt-Lee, Columbia

GEER DRUG COMPANY BUILDING, Spartanburg
Architects: Hudson & Chapman, Spartanburg

General Contractor: Fiske-Carter Construction Company, Spartanburg, AGC
Photo by Joseph W. Molitor, New York
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CAROLINA LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY BUILDING, Columbia
Architects: Lafaye, Fair, Lafaye & Associates, Columbia

General Contractor: General Construction Company, Columbia, AGC
Photos by Joseph W. Molitor, New York
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COURT YARD—JACK KRAWCHECK'S STORE, Charleston
Architects: Simons & Lapham, Charleston

General Contractor: Dotterer Engineering Company, Charleston, AGC
Photo by Louis |, Schwartz, Charleston




LAKE SHORE MOTOR COURT, Hartsville

Architect: G. Thomas Harmon, Columbia

General Contractor: General Engineering Company, Florence, AGC
Photo by Joseph W. Molitor, New York

MARION COCA-COLA BOTTLING COMPANY BUILDING, Conway
Architects: Hopkins, Baker & Gill, Florence

General Contractor: Moore Construction Company, Myrtle Beach, AGC
Photo by Joseph W. Molitor, New York




SERGEANT JASPER APARTMENTS, Charleston
Architects: William G. Lyles, Bissett, Carlisle & Wolff, Columbia

General Contractor: Skinner & Ruddock, Inc., Charleston, AGC
Photo by Joseph W. Molitor, New York

COLUMBIA STATE FARMERS MARKET, Columbia
Architect: Heyward Singley, Columbia
General Contractor: Charleston Constructors, Inc., Charleston

Photo by Joseph W. Molitor, New York
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hgia showing reflection pool and sculpture.. Front facade

CLEMSON HOUSE, Clemson

Architects: William G. Lyles, Bissett, Carlisle & Wolff, Columbia

General Contractor: Daniel Construction Company, Inc., Greenville, AGC
Photos by Joseph W. Molitor, New York
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GOVERNOR YEAMANS HOUSING PROJECT, North Charleston
Architect: H. Reid Hearn, Jr.,, Columbia

General Contractor: Ruscon Construction Company, Charleston, AGC

Photo by Joseph W. Molitor, New York




HALTIWANGER'S STORE, Columbia

Architect: Heyward Singley, Columbia

General Contractor: John C. Heslep Com-
pany, Columbia, AGC

Photos by Joseph W. Molitor, New York




HARRIS PLANT, GREENWOOD MILLS, Greenwood
Architect: The McPherson Company, Greenville

Photo by Joseph W. Molitor, New York
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HEADQUARTERS BUILDING FOR MID-CAROLINA ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, INC., Lexington
Architect: J. Whitney Cunningham, Sumter

General Contractor: Builders, Inc., Columbia

ARCHITECTURAL OFFICE, Sumter
Architects: James & DuRant, Sumter

General Contractor: R, L. Burgess, Sumter
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COLLETON COUNTY HOSPITAL, Walterboro
Architects: Lafaye, Fair, Lafaye & Associates, Columbia, and John L. Truluck, Associated Architects

General Contractor: George L. Fuller Construction Company, Augusta, Ga.




MUSIC BUILDING, COKER COLLEGE, Hartsville

Architect: C. Oliver Hardy, Columbia

General Contractor: Fiske-Carter Construction Company, Spartanburg, AGC
Photo of Sketch by John Hensel, Columbia

MOUNT HOLLY ELEMENTARY SCHOOL, Mount Holly
Architects: Harold Woodward, Architect & Associates, Spartanburg
General Contractor: George L. Fuller Construction Company, Augusta, Ga.

Photo by Joseph W. Molitor, New York




OFFICE BUILDING FOR THE STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA, Columbia
Architects: William G. Lyles, Bissett, Carlisle & Wolff, Columbia

General Contractor: Atlantic Building Corporation, Columbia, AGC
Photo of Sketch by Alt-Lee, Columbla
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TUOMEY HOSPITAL, Sumter
Architects: James & DuRant, Sumter

General Contractor: George L. Fuller Construction Company, Augusta, Ga.
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LAURENS COUNTY HEALTH CENTER, Laurens
Architects: William G. Lyles, Bissett, Carlisle & Wolff, Columbia
General Contractor: Spong Construction Company, Columbia, AGC




SHILOH BAPTIST CHURCH, Bennettsville

Architect: H. D. Harrall, Bennettsville




HEADQUARTERS FIRE STATION, Columbia
Architect: Heyward Singley, Columbia
General Contractor: Atlantic Building Corporation, Columbia, AGC

Photo by Joseph W. Molitor, New York




COLUMBIA AIRPORT TERMINAL, Columbia
Architects: Lafaye, Fair, Lafaye & Associates, Columbia

General Contractor: Spong Construction Company, Columbia, AGC
Photos by Joseph W. Molitor, New York




DORCHESTER TERRACE SCHOGL, WEST WING, District No. 4, Charleston County
Architects: Halsey & Cummings, Charleston

General Contractor: M. L, Stephenson, Charleston

JOHN WESLEY METHODIST CHURCH, Charles-
ton

Architects: Stephen Thomas and Halsey &
Cummings, Charleston

General Contractor: Dawson Engineering Com-
pany, Charleston




BARNWELL COUNTY COURT HOUSE AND OFFICE BUILDING, Barnwell
Architects: Hopkins, Baker & Gill, Florence

General Contractor: Manor Construction Company, Inc., Columbia, AGC

Photo by Joseph W. Molitor, New York



PARK STREET BAPTIST CHURCH, Columbia
Architects: Lafaye, Fair, Lafaye & Associates, Columbia
General Contractor: Mechanics Contracting Company, Columbia

Photo by Joseph W. Malitor, New York
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YORK HIGH SCHOOL, York

Architects: William G. Lyles, Bissett, Carlisle & Wolff, Columbia
General Contractor: W. Herbert Stiefel Company, Aiken, AGC

LOBECO ELEMENTARY SCHOOL, Lobeco
Architect: Heyward Singley, Columbia

General Contractor: Dawson Engineering Company, Charleston

Print by Munn & Teal, Columbia
from Kodachrome by Anderson Riley




K. K. BETH-ELOHIM TABERNACLE, Charles-
ton

Architects: Simons & Lapham, Charleston

General Contractor: Claude W. Blanchard,
Charleston

Photo by Louis |. Schwartz, Charleston

THORNWELL ORPHANAGE SCHOOL GYMNASIUM, Clinton
Architect: The McPherson Company, Greenville

General Contractor: Crosland Construction Company, Columbia,
AGC

Photo by Joseph W. Molitor, New York

MARLBORO COUNTY PUBLIC LIBRARY, Ben-
nettsville

Architect: H. D. Harrall, Bennettsville




YOUNG MEMORIAL A. R. P. CHURCH, Anderson
Architect: Charles William Fant, Anderson

General Contractor: Cromer & Sullivan Construction Company, Anderson, AGC
Photo by Joseph W. Molitor, New York




CARVER HIGH SCHOOL, Spartanburg
Architects: Harold Woodward, Architect & Associates, Spartanburg

General Contractor: W. M. Fine, Spartanburg, AGC
Photo by Joseph W. Molitor, New York

SALUDA HIGH SCHOOL, Saluda
Architects: Harold Woodward, Architect & Associates, Spartanburg

General Contractor: W. Herbert Stiefel Company, Aiken, AGC
Photo by Joseph W. Molitor, New York




ANNEX—MURRAY YOCATIONAL SCHOOL, Charleston
Architects: Simons & Lapham, Charleston

General Contractor: Charleston Constructors, Inc., Charleston

Photo by Louis |. Schwartz, Charleston

SCHNEIDER MEDICAL CLINIC, Ninety Six
Architect: John M. Lambert, Jr.,, Anderson

General Contractor: E. H. Hines Construction Company, Greenwood, AGC
Photo of Sketch by Richard Castleberry, Jr., Anderson




ORANGEBURG PRESBYTERIAN CHURCH, Orangeburg
Architects: Lafaye, Fair, Lafaye & Associates, Columbia

General Contractor: Crosland Construction Company, Columbia, AGC




NORTH HARTSVILLE ELEMENTARY SCHOOL, Hartsville
Arcshitects: C. Oliver Hardy and Oliver & Dickson (1946-1950), Columbia

General Contractor: General Engineering Corporation, Florence, AGC

Photo by Joseph W. Molitor, New York




ST. MARTINS-IN-THE-FIELDS EPISCOPAL CHURCH, Columbia
Architects: Lafaye, Fair, Lafaye & Associates, Columbia

General Contractor: John C. Heslep Company, Columbia, AGC
Photo of Exterior by Joseph W, Molitor, New York
Photo of Interior by Augustus Fitch, Columbia




ORANGEBURG JUNIOR HIGH SCHOOL, Orangeburg

Architect: G. Thomas Harmon, Columbia

General Contractor: Spong Construction Company, Columbia, AGC

Photo by Joseph W. Molitor, New York




NEGRO GIRLS" TRAINING SCHOOL, Columbia
Architect: The McPherson Company, Greenville

General Contractor: The Dawson Engineering Company, Charleston

Photo by Joseph W. Molitor, New York




HARRIS ELEMENTARY SCHOOL, Greenwood
Architects: Harold Woodward, Architect & Associates, Spartanburg
Photo by Joseph W, Molitor, New York




AGRICULTURAL ENGINEERING BUILDING,
CLEMSON COLLEGE, Clemson

Architects: C. Oliver Hardy and Oliver &
Dickson (1946-1950), Columbia

General Contractor: Brissey Lumber Company,
Anderson, AGC

Photo by Joseph W. Molitor, New York

BREWER HIGH SCHOOL AND GYMNASIUM,
Greenwood

Architect: James C., Hemphill, Greenwood

General Contractor: H. L. Eargle Construction
Company, Columbia, AGC




PRESBYTERIAN CHURCH, Myrtle Beach
Architects: Hopkins, Baker & Gill, Florence

General Contractor: Moaore Construction Company, Myrtle Beach, AGC
Photo by Joseph W. Molitor, New York




CLEMSON COLLEGE CHEMISTRY BUILDING, Clemson
Architects: Hopkins, Baker & Gill, Florence

General Contractor: Industrial Builders, Inc., Anderson, AGC
Photo by Joseph W, Molitor, New York

RADIO STATION, BOB JONES UNIVERSITY,
Greenville

Architect: W. E. Freeman, Jr., Greenville

Photo by Henry Elrod, Greenville
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SYLVIA CIRCLE SCHOOL, Rock Hill
Architect: G. Thomas Harmon, Columbia

General Contractor: Dawson Engineering Company, Charleston
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MUSEUM BUILDING, BOB JONES UNIVERSITY, Greenville
Architect: W. E. Freeman, Jr., Greenville




SPONG
CONSTRUCTION
CO.

GENERAL
CONTRACTORS

Ernest M. Spong
Ernest M. Spong, Jr.

Phone 3-9451
P. O. Box 5436
COLUMBIA, S. C.

Carolina Concrete
Pipe Co.,
Inc.

PLAIN
G
REINFORCED
CONCRETE
PIPE

For Sanitary Sewers,
Culverts &

Drainage

P. O. Box 1266 — Tel. 8212
COLUMBIA
SOUTH CAROLINA

H. TEZZA

TILE - MARBLE
TERRAZZO

76 Pitt Street
CHARLESTON, S. C.

Reamer Industries
Inc.

AIR CONDITIONING
REFRIGERATION
OIL FURNACES

Carvier

“Weathermakers to South
Carolina”

Distributors
CARRIER CORPORATION

W. S. Reamer, Jr., Pres.
J. D. Williams, Vice-Pres.

M. H. Reamer, Sec.-Treas.

P. O. Drawer 419
COLUMBIA, S. C.

OWEN ROOFING
COMPANY

1901 Blanding Street
Phone 6002
COLUMBIA, SOUTH CAROLINA

We are proud to list among our
projects:

W. G. LYLES RESIDENCE
Columbia

H. R. BURG RESIDENCE
Columbia

NORTH COLUMBIA FIRE
STATION

Columbia

EDUCATIONAL BUILDING OF
THE LUTHERAN CHURCH
OF INCARNATION

Columbia

CRUSHED GRANITE

The
Weston & Brooker
Company

Offices:

COLUMBIA, S. C.
MACON, GEORGIA

Plants:
CAYCE, S. C.
CAMAK, GEORGIA
GRANITE HILL, GEORGIA
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For Your Group Insurance Needs

e CAROLINA LIFE
i £ VJ lJ
. ‘ . INSURANCE CO.
ELRIC S. PINCKNEY :
Representing: THE TRAVELERS of Hartford, Conn. Columbia
17V4 Chalmers Street -1 Phone 7407 e
CHARLESTON 1, SOUTH CAROLINA

“Leg:z/ Reserve Lz'fe
Insurance Company”
il s

SELLS A POLICY SUITABLE
ESTABLISHED 1910

TO THE NEEDS OF EACH
MEMBER OF THE FAMILY

F. GRAHAM WILLIAMS CO. || Indusirial — Oid Line

Incorporated

“Beautiful and Permanent Building Materials” J‘)HN W.
ELgin 1084 BILEY
gin
SONS
1690 BOULEVARD, N. E.

GENERAL PLASTER
ATLANTA 5, GEORGIA CONTRACTORS

COLUMBIA

—

R
W. R. BONSAL COMPANY

LILESVILLE, N. C.
Tel. Rockingham 2500

SOUTH CAROLINA

Svans
Construction
Company

General Contractors

CAMERON
SOUTH CAROLINA
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—THE EVOLUTION OF ARCHITEC-
TURE IN SOUTH CAROLINA

(Contind from Bage 11) ANDERS CONTRACTING CO., INC.

tages”, each a story and a half high set
upon a high basement and ornamented
by a simple portico. They have become Lathing =2 Plastering =2 Stucco
scarce, which is to be regretted, for they
were an attractive type,

Shortly before the end of the eight- P. O. Box 3103
eenth century, a new architectural influ-
ence became apparent in this state, the GREENV'LLE’ SOUTH CAROLINA
Adam style. As a matter of fact, it was
long overdue, having been the rage in
England practically ever since Robert
Adam began practicing in 1758. Bul-
finch, of Boston, sometimes is credited
with having first introduced the style
to America, but South Carolina would
seem to have been abreast of New Eng- NU‘IDEA SCHooL SUPPLY Co
land. The long and lofty portico which 3
was added to the house at Hampton plan- ESTABLISHED 1921
tation in 1790 was derived straight from
the villa at Hampton on the Thames,
designed by Adam for the actor, Garrick. SUMTER, SOUTH CAROLINA
The Charleston county courthouse, com-
pleted in 1792, which was designed by

Judge William Drayton, shows Adam We Sell:
: o . : :
prgp?nﬂ_'olnzdm_'ts l;"am ,acadle " 1 Blackboards - Corkboards - Church Pews - Sunday School Furniture
s ante ith h 5 3
e Ak et ket L Steel Folding Chairs - Cafeteria Tables - U. S. Flags

a European education, was the outstand-
ing South Carolina architect of this pe-

S. C. Flags - Steel Files

riod. An amateur architect, but an ex- School Furniture - Window Shades - Playground Equipment

cellent one, he interpreted the Adam Portable Bleachers - Office Furniture - Mimeograph and Duplicator Paper
manner with unusual success. The dwell- Laboratory Furniture - Duplicators and Supplies

ing he designed for his brother Joseph, Maps and Globes

at Charleston, is valuable not only for
its delicate but lively decoration but also
for its plan, which includes a curving WRITE FOR LARGE GENERAL CATALOG
staircase of great beauty and a bowed
dining room. A lavish use of color adds
to the gay feeling of the interior.
Manigault also designed the Orphan
House Chapel and the South Carolina

Hall and is credited with the plan of the LEADING ARCHITECTS and ENGINEERS
Bank of the United States building, now ;

the City Hall of Charleston. These struc- SDGCIfY the

tures show that he was no mere copy-cat o R | G | N A L

of attractive detail but was possessed

of remarkable sensitivity in applying it T E N N E S S E E Q U A R T Z I T E

and also that he understood the funda-

‘“‘X““'S fo P““‘“*ﬁg- ek r Sy Flagging and Rubble Stone for unexcelled quality
part rom anigault's work, e s %
s e ey e e and color range from our famous Quarries in the
most often in superficial matters of dec- CRAB ORCHARD DISTRICT

oration, such as graceful fanlights and

composition-ornamented mantels and cor- Owned and operated by

nices. Occasionally a larger borrowing

may be found, as in the case of the First ‘
(Scotch) Presbyterian Church, built MPANY

about 1814, where the twin towers with
their cupola-crowned turrets are reminis- Since 1931
cent of those on Robert Adam’s church L
at Mistley Spa, Essex. Unfortunately, General Offices
the architect of the Presbyterian church
is unknown.

The Adam influence was to linger for
years. It was shown clearly in the Old
Medical College (no longer standing)
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KRAFT & NEWELL

General Contractors
Also Farm Drainage and Clearing
P. O. Box 262
FLORENCE, SOUTH CAROLINA

Wm. S. Anderson

Electric Co., Inc.
Serving South Carolina Since 1930

Electrical Construction Work
246 Meeting St.
CHARLESTON, S. C.

Earl Delay & Company

Roofing and Sheet Metal

Commercial s=t Industrial Institutional

“’E{D}é -

COLUMBIA, SOUTH CAROLINA

Blaising Roofing
Company

CONTRACTORS

Roof Insulation - Waterproofing
Roofing - Sheet Metal

Dial 3-1231 :-: 149 E. Bay St.
P. O. Box 176
CHARLESTON A, S. C.

L. L. HYATT COMPANY

PLUMBING & HEATING CONTRACTOR
—

— Specializing in —
INDUSTRIAL - COMMERCIAL and PROJECT WORK

—
SPARTANBURG, SOUTH CAROLINA

287 S. Liberty -1 Dial 3-7203

HANCOCK BUICK
COMPANY

BUICK
Sales -- Parts ~- Service
Gorner Laurel & Barnwell Sis.
Golumbia, 8. G.

@
- Good Used Cars -

SOUTHERN
ICE
COMPANY

ICE :-: COAL

CHARLESTON, S. C.
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designed by Frederick Wesner in 1827,
though Wesner was influenced also by
the Greek Revival. It may be traced in
the embellishments of several handsome
wooden houses associated with the Ben-
nett family, including the Governor
Thomas Bennett House. Nor should
one overlook a flock of attractive brick
“single houses”, built around 1800, which
are so alike that it seems probable that
all were designed by one man, whoever
he may have been. Charlestonian in
plan, they owe most to the Adam style in
decoration, though a few show a Regency
influence.

In the early 1800’s, the composition
ornaments were supplemented or super-
seded by an American development, the
lavish use of small wood detail, especial-
ly reeding and gouge-work and the fluted
or reeded ellipse (often called the sun-
burst pattern) and fan. You may find
examples from Ohio to Savannah, but
strangely enough, the two strongholds of
this type of decoration were South Caro-
lina and New York State! In the lat-
ter it was prevalent in the Hudson Valley
and parts of Long Island and even ex-
tended over the border into New Jersey.
In South Carolina it is found in some-
what restrained form at Charleston and
much more exuberantly in Upper St
John's, Berkeley, where it reached its
most elaborate at Springfield plantation.
1t also penetrated inland and a superior
example may be seen in the drawing-
room mantel at Cedar Grove plantation,
near FEdgefield.

The explanation of how two such wide-
ly separated states as New York and
South Carolina came to share a style
probably lies in the popularity of North-
ern carpenters in the Low Country, plus
the fact of occasional importations of
woodwork from the North, a case in point
being the sunburst-adorned mantel at the
Rocks plantation. While interesting,
this style could hardly be termed impor-
tant, except for one thing—it seems to
be the earliest instance of an architectural
impulse coming to South Carolina from
another part of the United States, rather
than from England.

" By 1820, however, all minor trends
were dwarfed (which does not mean that
they wvanished entirely) by a mighty
power abroad in the land—the Greek
Revival. It probably is not over-sim-
plifying matters to say that in this state
the Greek Revival may be divided into
two parts, the work of Robert Mills, done
mainly in the 1820’s, and the work of
others, accomplished principally after
1838. The intervening eight years saw
relatively little building in the state, due
to adverse economic conditions.

Mills, native son and architectural
genius, was born at or near Charleston
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M 0 RRIS Cconstruction Company

g\,&“‘!@ft GENERAL CONTRACTORS

505 NEWS BUILDING
GREENVILLE, S. C.

Cunningham-Waters Construction Co.

General Coniractors

_.ﬁﬂj}g._

Phone 1072
GREER, SOUTH CAROLINA

F

An interior view of Carolina Life Building

Woodwork Finishing By

HERMON PORTH

Interior Decorating :-: Painting :-: Papering :-: Murals
ALL TYPES WOODWORK FINISHING
5705 Fairfield Road :-: Tel. 4-5466 :-: Columbia, S. C.

Page 85




Byers Ornamental
Iron Works

3513 Augusta Road
GREENVILLE, SOUTH CAROLINA

We point with pride to our work on
Homes, Buildings, Churches

A Partial List Below:

BUILDINGS
Calhoun Towers, Greenville, S. C.
Colonial Court Hotel, Greenville, S. C.
Gayley Mills, Marietta, Ga.
Utica-Mohawk Mills, Seneca, S. C.
Nicholtown Schools, Greenville, S. C.

CHURCHES
First Baptist, Anderson, S. C.
A. R. P., Anderson, S. C.
First Baptist, Belton, S. C.
First Baptist, Fountain Inn, S. C.
South Main Baptist, Greenwood, S. C.

HOMES

John Lambert, Anderson, S. C.

Joe Lyons, Anderson, S. C.

W. H. Richardson, Greenville, S. C.
W. J. Erwin, Ware Shoals, S. C.
Felix B. Montgomery, Greenville, S. C.
Conway Jones, Fountain Inn, S. C.

35 Years Experience
The Only Exclusive Ornamental
Manufacturer in South Carolina

NIGGEL BROTHERS

TILE - MARBLE - TERRAZZO
Resilient Flooring

3804 Devine St. :-: Phone 5511
COLUMBIA, S. C.

DIVISION OF COLUMBIA STONE CO.
Established 1900

A partial list of contracts completed
and also now under construction:

Spartanburg Memorial Auditorium
Spartanburg, S. C

Colleton County Hospital
Walterboro, 8. C.

Veterans Administration Building
Columbia, 8. C

University of S. C. Science Building
Columbia, 8. C.

Laurens Health Center
Laurens, S. C.

Union Health Center
Union, S. C.

Lake City High School
Lake City, 8. C.

S. C. Sanatorium
State Park, 8. C.

State Highway Department Building
Columbia, 8. C.

Newberry County Hospital
Newberry, 8. C.

Long Apartments

Anderson, Orangeburg, Rock Hill, Sumter
and Greenwood, 8. C.

FORT ROOFING &
SHEET METAL
WORKS

W. T. FORT, Prop.

ROOFING, HEATING &
SHEET METAL FABRICATORS

We are proud to list among our
projects:

Architectural Office, Sumter
M. F. Korn Res., Sumter

B. L. Montague Co., Charleston
The Tuomey Hospital, Sumter

Gov. Yeaman's Housing Project,
Charleston

Sgt. Jasper Apts., Charleston
Glover Apts., Orangeburg
Hartsville City Hall & Fire Station
N. Hartsville Elementary School

11 E. HAMPTON AVENUE
TELEPHONE 1074
SUMTER, S. C.

Walker Plumbing &
Heating Co.

Plumbing & Heating
Contractors

635 Elmwood Ave. - Phone 2-0478

COLUMBIA, S. C.

PIEDMONT

FABRICATORS

IRON WORKS,

Inc

STRUCTURAL AND REINFORCING STEEL

STEEL SASH — ROLLING STEEL DOORS — ORNAMENTAL & MISCELLANEOUS IRON
Office and Works: Union St. & Sou. Ry. — Telephone 2-1422
Spartanburg, South Carolina

Page 86

SOUTH CAROLINA MAGAZINE, JANUARY, 1952




in 1781 and received the best education
the city afforded, before going to work
with Thomas Jefferson on Monticello
and Hoban at Washington. In 1804
Mills returned briefly and designed the

Circular Congregational Church in
Charleston which inaugurated a new and
radical departure in church design, the
auditorium form. He repeated it twice
at Philadelphia, in 1808 and 1813, and
at Richmond in 1812,

In the 1820’s, this hard-working, pa-
triotic and it would seem, inspired man,
returned again for a decade which en-
riched South Carolina with a quantity of
admirable structures. How many build-
ings are due to Mills is unknown. He
undoubtedly had his imitators and sev-
eral structures, especially dwellings,
which tradition links with him may be
their work. IEnough that his influence
was good,

Buildings in this state generally con-
sidered to be of his design include the
courthouse and Bethesda Presbyterian
Church, at Camden; courthouses at Lan-
caster, Kingstree, Walterboro, Conway,
Georgetown, Winnsboro and Marlboro;
the oldest building of the South Carolina
State Hospital and the second Ainsley
Hall dwelling (later the Columbia Theo-
logical Seminary) at Columbia, and the
First Baptist Church, old jail annex,
Marine Hospital and Fireproof Building
at Charleston. Others of his buildings,
such as the courthouse at Greenville, no
longer stand.

Many other states, north and south,
possess structures which Mills designed,
while nationally he is known for his
Washington monument.

Mills is classed among the leaders of
the Greek Revival school, but his ap-
proach was unarchaeological and his
work shows more Roman influence than
Greek. Moreover, he was an innovator.
His rotunda-form auditorium churches
have been mentioned. His State Hos-
pital, begun in 1822, had a roof garden,
window bars arranged to look like ordi-
nary muntins so as not to distress the
patients, and a hot air heating system.
The old Record Building at Charleston
is said to have been the first attempt at
fireproof construction in this country,
He was largely instrumental in persuvad-
ing the Charleston merchants to finance
the building of a railroad from that city
to a point on the Savannah River oppo-
site Augusta. When completed in 1833,
it was the world’s longest passenger
steam railroad.

Mills’ buildings are austere, astonish-
ly so when compared with later examples
of Classic Revival work in this state,
South Carolinians, in spite of their tra-
ditional conservatism, never have hesi-
tated to be individualistic when it suited
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INGLESBY-BLUME LUMBER COMPANY

Millwork Suppliers for:

MID-CAROLINA ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, LEXINGTON, S. C,
PARK STREET BAPTIST CHURCH, COLUMEBIA, §S. C.
SALUDA HIGH SCHOOL, SALUDA, S. C.

And the following Apartments:

AIKEN HOUSE, FLORENCE :-: RAFFIELD ARMS, SUMTER :-: COBB HOUSE, ROCK HILL
WILMARY, ANDERSON :-: EDWARD ARMS, GREENWOOD,
GLOVER, ORANGEBURG

629 Hampton St. — Phone 3-7581
COLUMBIA, SOUTH CAROLINA

J. P. ROSAMOND & SONS

GENERAL CONTRACTORS

Residential & Commercial Building

309 N. Main Street 12 Phone 2-2727
GREENVILLE, SOUTH CAROLINA

DEWEY BROTHERS, Inc.

Structural Steel Fabricators

Grey Iron Municipal & Building Products
Mill Supplies

~=lllF=

GOLDSBORO, NORTH CAROLINA
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MOORE
CONSTRUCTION
COMPANY

General Contractors

MYRTLE BEACH
SOUTH CAROLINA

Craig-Roberson
Construction
Company

GENERAL CONTRACTORS
ENGINEERS

Industrial, Residential, Commercial
Construction

Office Phones: 2-3079 & 2-0860
1610 Wesminster Drive
COLUMSBIA, S. C.

“Abreast of the Times — through
scientific design”

CECIL’S
Incorporated

OF SPARTANBURG, S. C.
._*_

GENERAL CONTRACTORS

Specialists in
CONCRETE CONSTRUCTION

_*_
Spartanburg, South Carolina

P. O. Box No. 1895

Phone 5416

Above: Orangeburg Jr. High School
Orangeburg, South Carolina

SALISBURY
BRICK

Corporation

SUMMERVILLE, S. C.

WE FURNISHED BRICK FOR
THE FOLLOWING:

e Orangeburg Jr. High School

e Lake Shore Motor Court

® Huffstetler Residence
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them, neither have they feared size or
embellishment. In common with the
rest of the South, they interpreted the
Classic Revival in a liberal manner and
with zest. The results were more imag-
inative than academic and sometimes ap-
pear wayward and eccentric, or over-
poweringly grandiose, yet often these
unorthodox buildings exercise consider-
able charm. The effect is sometimes lush
but seldom crass. The worst examples
show a tendency toward coarsely exe-
cuted detail, stocky columns and other
clumsy proportions. The best examples
are, as their makers intended them to be,
magnificent.

Milford, Governor John 1, Manning's
home, built about 1852, near Stateburg,
is one of the South's great houses. Its
six-columned Corinthian portico and the
acroteria of its parapet which are echoed
but not exactly copied by those above
the front doorway, are the most striking
exterior features of this truly imposing
building. Unfortunately, its architect is
unknown,

The Hasell Street Synagogue, Beth
Elohim, designed by Cyrus L. Warner,
of New York, and built 1840-41, prob-
ably is the most important Greek Re-
vival building in Charleston, Of temple
form, with a portico inspired by that of
the Theseum, the entire structure has
dignity and sophistication. The Charles-
ton Hotel, designed by Charles F. Reich-
ardt, a German, and built in 1839, has a
row of fourteen columns set on a crypto-
portico, which Talbot Hamlin, auothority
on the Greek Revival has termed “one
of the most superb street facades the
movement produced.”

Also noteworthy in Charleston are the
Kerrison, Mikell, Roper and Edmond-
ston-Allston houses, and several excel-
lent but generally over-looked dwellings
in lower Pitt Street.

At Newberry, the Old Courthouse, with
its high Doric portico, built 1850, de-
serves praise. A vanished example of
great worth was the old courthouse at
Spartanburg. It was destroyed late in
the last century but an old photograph
of Morgan Square reveals its Doric dig-
nity.

The State House at Columbia, designed
by John R. Niernsee, of Baltimore, shows
a handsome colonnade but the dome, by
another man, is not what Niernsee in-
tended.

These buildings are noticeable among
the Greek and Classic Revival work in
this state, but every reader should be
able to think of others of merit, probably
right in his own neighborhood. Nor
should one forget the minor but often
pleasant results of the style. Many a
staid farmhouse suddenly acquired a
handsome portico, This most often hap-
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THE BRISSEY LUMBER CO.
GENERAL CONTRACTORS

ANDERSON
SOUTH CAROLINA

BAILEY-BRAZELL CONSTRUCTION CO.

INC.

General Contractors

P. O. Box 386, Greenville, South Carolina

W. HERBERT STIEFEL

AIKEN, SOUTH CAROLINA
s Thpe—

General Contractor For

York High School, York, S, C.
Saluda High School, Saluda, S. C.
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CUT ART STONE COMPANY

Since 1919
MAX E. KLEINSTEUBER, Proprietor

Plain and Ornamental Cast Stone

Telephones
Office 2-4623 — Residence 8926
101 West 44th Street :-: Post Office Box 1124

SAVANNAH, GEORGIA

ATLANTIC
BUILDING
CORP.

General Contractors

"

... Sure ... were proud to have been the builders of the
Joseph H. Frances residence selected by the South Carolina
Chapter of the

A Il A

See it pictured elsewhere in this issue of the South Carolina
Magazine.”

CHAS. N. ROBINSON
- Architect -

BELK CONSTRUCTION COMPANY
— General Contractors —

R.F D.3
LANCASTER, SOUTH CAROLINA

1735 Pinehurst Road

COLUMBIA, S. C.

i

W. FLOYD COCHRAN

STEEL ERECTION

Smoke Stack Construction

ROUTE 4

CHARLOTTE, NORTH CAROLINA

T. G. GRIGGS
TRUCKING
CO.

-

RUBY
SOUTH CAROLINA

_...E{ D}.}_
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pened after a good cotton season, and
one can almost generalize that when
cotton was high, columns would soon be
likewise. Sometimes these classic porch-
es betray a hitched-on look but many
were genuine improvements, Fort Hill,
John C. Calhoun’s home, furnishes the
most famous example of an added por-
tico, but ‘there were plenty of others.

Accompanying the Greek Revival was
the Gothic Revival, though it was re-
stricted mostly to churches and military
halls, and on the whole was less success-
ful. Robert Mills seems to have designed
the first Gothic Revival church in this
state;, a cruciform Roman Catholic
church, built in the 1820’s at Columbia.
His Marine Hospital, built in the 1830’s
at Charleston, also struck an unarchaeo-
logical but pleasing Gothic note.

The second Gothic Revival church in
this state seems to have been the Hu-
guenot Church, built 1844-45, at Charles-
ton. It was designed by Edward B.
White, who was responsible also for a
quantity of other Gothic churches, includ-
ing Trinity Protestant Episcopal, at Co-
lumbia, and the outwardly unpretentious
but inwardly dramatic Chapel of the
Cross, at Bluffton, Edward C. Jones’
Church of the Holy Cross, at Stateburg,
is an example of this style carried out
in terre pise. An example in stone is
furnished by St. Mary’s Roman Catholic
Church, at Edgefield, designed by Niern-
see,

The Ante-Bellum years were a period
of eclecticism, when South Carolina ar-
chitects, like their contemporaries else-
where, followed a variety of styles.
Charleston even has a Moorish bank
building and an Egyptian tomb. The
so-called “Italian villa” style can ram-
pant and produced a number of near-
monstrosities but also, occasionally, when
in capable hands, something of beauty,
like the admirable tower at Furman Uni-
versity.

This state was fortunate in the 1840's
and 50’s in having a number of able
resident architects. These included Ed-
ward B. White, George E. Walker and
Edward C. Jones and Jones’ partner,
Francis D. Lee. Jones & Lee's practice
extended over the state and into Georgia
and North Carolina. The term architect
was understood as it is today and mem-
bers of the profession were employed
as a matter of course to design any
building of importance.

These two decades saw an immense
amount of building activity which ended
abruptly (like so much else) with the out-
break of the War Between the States.
There had been a last minute burst of
mansions in 1839 and 1860, perhaps a
triflle overblown in style. The tendency
was to be heavy and increasingly spa-
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Charlotte, N. C.
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Contractors
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4 Poplar :-: Phone 9924
CHARLESTON, S. C.

ASHE BRICK COMPANY

Face Brick -2 Common Brick
Hollow Tile

Post Office and Plant
VAN WYCK, S. C.

Phone 5-1545
ROCK HILL, SOUTH CAROLINA

ARL W. MULLIS LUMBER CO.

LUMBER AND BUILDING MATERIALS

CARL W B1ILLIS = OWNER PHONE 194 & fc

We furnished materials and construction on the J. W. Keistler and
H. N. Estridge Residences.
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H. L. EARGLE CONSTRUCTION CO.

General Coniractor For
Brewer High School and Gymnasium

Greenwood, S. C.

1410 Sumter St. — Phone 2-9327
COLUMBIA, SOUTH CAROLINA
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PLYWOOD COMPANY
GENERAL OFFICES, AUGUSTA, GA.

Greenville Dunbrik
Company

Dunbrik :-: Cast Stone
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COLUMBIA, S. C.
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Ceramic Tile :-: Marble
Terrazzo

Contracting & Remodeling

Francis Marion Hotel

CHARLESTON, S. C.

Camden Builders
Supply Co.

At The Big DuPont Sign

Phone 991-J — W. DeKalb St.
CAMDEN, S. C.
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cious, But in judging these immense,
high-ceiled houses we must remember
that they were not always quite so un-
functional as we find them today. They
were built for an era when servants were
plentiful, fuel was cheap, and the way
of life demanded space—Victorian fam-
ilies, hoopskirts, hospitality and even
the fashionable dogs being large.

The war saw the destruction of many
buildings and others, especially plantation
houses, were burned during Reconstruc-
tion, some from malice but more from
neglect. In the years following the Con-
federacy, few South Carolinians had
money for building. It was an era of
patching, of making do. Even when
economic conditions improved in the
1880's and 90's, the condition of archi-
tecture was far from good. Taste, prac-
tically everywhere, was at a low ebb and
the jigsaw pattern, corner turret and
top-heavy mansard were in fashion. Any-
one who cared to call himself architect
did so. In most cases, buildings were
erected without the aid of professional
advice, on a plan furnished by the car-
penter or contractor. When architects
were employed, they often were out-of-
state men, selected with little knowledge
of thir abilitis or lack of the same,

The few architects of talent in the state
at that time, such as William Martin
Aiken and Rutledge Holmes, found it
difficult to meet the unprofessional com-
petition and generally sought their living
elsewhere. Holmes went to Florida and
Aiken to New York. The latter became
supervising architect of the Treasury,
1895-96.

In 1901, the South Carolina Associa-
tion of Architects was formed at Colum-
bia, with Charles C. Wilson as president.
This group reorganized in 1912, again
headed by Mr. Wilson, and a constitu-
tion and by-laws copied from those of the
American Institute of Architects were
adopted. These steps at once proved ben-

eficial, both in promoting good feeling
among the architects of the state and in
checking unregulated competitions.

At a joint meeting in 1913, the South
Carolina Chapter of the American In-
stitute of Architects was organized with
six charter members. One of these, A. W.
Todd, who became a state legislator, was
instrumental in obtaining passage of an
act which became effective in 1917, de-
fining qualifications for the practice of
architecture and providing for registra-
tion of architects. Achievements of the
chapter include the preparation of the
state school building code, adopted in
1924, and an important share in drafting
the state building code.

During the 20's, building for the most
part was steady but unspectacular. The
bungalow type was popular for small
dwellings. The end of this decade, how-
ever, saw an unexpected demand for a
limited number of elaborate plantation
houses when Northern capitalists bought
Low Country estates for winter homes
and shooting preserves, They restored
the old houses, or, where these had van-
ished, built new ones. The impulse soon
flagged, however, because of the depres-
sion.

This crisis was weathered, in part,
with the aid of the Historic American
Building Survey, which employed twenty-
three South Carolina architects and
draughtsmen in 1933-34, Albert Simons,
of Charleston, was one of four architects
chosen from the entire country to serve
as collaborator-at-large of this survey.

In recent years, building has been
brisk over the state. New types, sky-
scraper apartments, radio stations, air-
port buildings, recreational centers, med-
ical centers, tourist courts and super-
markets have been handled with a high
degree of success, Housing projects em-
bracing hundreds of units and private
dwellings ranging from traditional styles
to ranch-type and “modern” (but seldom

Greetings from the . . .

SOUTH CAROLINA
BOTTLERS OF
CARBONATED BEVERAGES,
INCORPORATED

SOUTHEASTERN

SOUND & ELECTRONICS
CORPORATION
2 Aberdeen at Augusta St.
GREENVILLE, S. C.

Exclusive Distributors
North Carolina, South Carolina, and Georgia

KELLOGG SELECT-O-PHONE
Automatic Dial Communication

J. W. CANNON

General

Contractor

o 4

Residential & Commercial
Building

e 4

103 State Park Road
Phone 5-7750
GREENVILLE, S. C.

Systems

CONCRETE
BLOCKS

OUR STEAM CURED BLOCKS
MEET A. S. T. M. SPECIFICATIONS
FOR GRADE A LOAD BEARING WALLS

LAWRENCE

STONE & GRAVEL CO., INC,

OFFICE PLANT
COLUMBIA, S. C. BLENHEIM, 5. €.
PHONE 2-119¢ PHONE 2252
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Rose-Talbert Paint
Company

MANUFACTURERS OF
ROSE'S QUALITY PAINTS
STAINS & ENAMELS

1222 Taylor St. : Phone 6269
COLUMBIA, SOUTH CAROLINA

C. W. BLANCHARD

General Contractor
6 State Street

Charleston, South Carolina

George Electric Co.

303 Augusta Rd.

GREENVILLE, S. C.

-

FLOYD G. DAWSON

Painting Contractor
Brush & Spray Painting

Residential :-: Commercial :-: Industrial

Phone 2-7059
614 S. Holly Street

COLUMBIA, SOUTH CAROLINA

Huntington & Guerry
Electric Company

Electrical Contractors

Phone 3-2735

Greenville, South Carolina

CLYDE NETTLES
Roofing & Paint

RESIDENTIAL ROOFING
CONTRACTOR
All Types Brush & Spray Painting

Dealers for
H. B. DAVIS OF BALTIMORE PAINTS

Distributors of
ACME PAINTS

Seaboard Park — Phone 4-3651
COLUMBIA, S. C.

Charleston, South Carolina
Contractors

SCIENCE BUILDING, COKER COLLEGE
HARTSVILLE, SOUTH CAROLINA

GENERAL CONTRACTING COMPANY, Inec.

fficers:

J. W. Johnson and T. A. Hayden
J. W. Johnson Jr., Superintendent
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“ultra-modern”) have displayed skill and
imagination.

The story of South Carolina architec-
ture is that of some ten generations who
built under a number of influences from
within and without, including the fashion
of their day, the climate, the available
materials and especially their own indi-
vidualistic spirit. This independence has
always, for better or for worse, charac-
terized our people in dealing with more
things than architecture. In general,
South Carolinians showed conservatism
as to style but great freedom in its adap-
tation. During colonial times they
sought and achieved elegance. Later
they paid their respects to grandeur. At
present, they have a sort of double-
barrelled quality, engaged on the one
hand with traditionally-inspired buildings
and on the other with new types, ap-
parently with equal ease and facility.

@@

A. A. METTS
COMPANY

Contractors for

ACOUSTICAL and RESILIENT
FLOORING

104 Lantana Ave. — Phone 2-3290
CHARLOTTE, N. C.

H. J. MUNNERLYN

INCORPORATED

“EVERYTHING IN BUILDING
MATERIAL"

CONTRACTING

BENNETTSVILLE
SOUTH CAROLINA

—THE AMERICAN INSTITUTE
OF ARCHITECTS

(Continued from Page 13)

aspires—the constant betterment of the
architects’ competence through mutual
sharing of knowledge and experience, the
constant improvement of the safeguards
that law and codes impose, the constant
betterment of the education necessary
for the practice of architecture, the de-
velopment of an atmosphere of public
taste and social responsibility in which
this nation will want, and may finally
achieve, great architecture, an architec-
ture worthy of our civilization.

The goal must have seemed far away
to that little band of founders in 1857.
Nevertheless, the professional body they
organized has come of age. It now con-
sists of 97 chapters and 9 state organiza-
tions, serving the whole of the United
States and its possessions, The schools

SEASTRUNK
Electric Company

LIGHTING FIXTURES
Commercial and Residential
INTERIOR ELECTRIC WIRING
POLE LINE CONSTRUCTION

P. O. Box 329
Phone 2-8684 — 2-8685
COLUMBIA, SOUTH CAROLINA

look to The Institute and its individual
members for guidance in the improve-
ment of their methods and curricula. Ar-
chitects outside its membership look to
The Institute to frame and to maintain
a plane of ethics in keeping with the im-
portance of architecture in our social
fabric. The courts have long recognized
the basic principles of practice for which
The Institute stands. The Government,
through its various departments, comes
to The Institute for help in the selection
of competent practitioners for its wide-
flung activities in many fields of building.

SANITARY

Plumbing & Heating
Company

Phone 2-2996

1027 E. North Street
GREENVILLE, SOUTH CAROLINA

C. B. ASKINS

GENERAL
CONTRACTOR

w

LAKE CITY
SOUTH CAROLINA

CANADY
CONSTRUCTION
COMPANY

General Contractor

Specializing in
CHURCH CONSTRUCTION

Residential -1 Commercial

Industrial Construction

CHARLESTON, S. C.
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Perhaps the architect’s own apprecia-
tion of his responsibility is best expressed
by Mr. George Bain Cummings, F.A.L.A,,
in a parallel to the doctors’ Hippocratic
Oath.

Humbly and proudly [ profess my
competence under the discipline of archi-
tecture.

Upon my most shining personal honor
I promise unending devotion to the task
of continually studying, learning, seeking,
experimenting, that I may become ever
better educated and trained for my work.

Upon my most shining personal honor
I promise to my community undeviating
adherence to the ideal of service to my
fellow men as the goal of my effort, that
I may honestly and fully earn my liv-
ing—my right to live among them.

Upon my most shining personal honor
I promise to maintain that integrity in
practice which will insure to each client
the finest possible stewardship of his in-
terest.

Upon my most shining personal honor
I promise in the execution of every com-
mission to strive to create beauty as well
as order, character as well as safety, spir-
itual value as well as convenience.

Upon my most shining personal honor
I promise to join with my fellow archi-

W. H. PRICE &
H. A. DIXON

CONTRACTORS

“We Try to Please Everyone”

126 State St. :-: Phone 2-8215

WEST COLUMBIA, S. C.

QUATTLEBAUM
Electric Co.

HEATING « AIR CONDITIONING
COMMIRCIAL REFRIGERATION

302 King St. Phone 2-4053
CHARLESTON, S. C.

tects to make our profession of greatest
possible usefulness and benefit to our
society, to share and disseminate all val-
uable professional knowledge, and to pass
on to the succeeding generation the full
and fine discipline of our profession, en-
riched because of my dedication.
—H. H. S.

Reoster S. C.
Chapter AIA

CORPORATE MEMBERS MARCH 1, 1951

¢« qe @

Beacham, James D.
1403 Augusta Rd.
Greenville, S. C.

Bissett, Thomas, J.
1321 Bull St,
Columbia, S. C.

Boothe, Louis Strother
920 Montgomery Bldg.
N. Church Street
Spartanburg, S. C.

Carlisle, William A.
1321 Bull St.
Columbia, S. C.

SOUTHERN BRICK
COMPANY

NINETY SIX, S. C.

Common -1 Face

Jumbo Brick

WILHOIT STEEL
ERECTORS

Moving and Handling of Heavy
Equipment

P. O. Box 431 — Phone 4-1562

COLUMBIA, S. C.

Carroll, John

P. O. Box 713

66th Ave. & The Beach
Myrtle Beach, S. C.

Chapman, Abel Hugh, Jr.
396 St. John St
Spartanburg, S. C.

Cummings, Cornelius T.
4 Broad St,
Charleston, S. C.

Cunningham, J. Whitney
The Shelor Building
Sumter, S. C.

Dickson, Alex. A.
Palmetto Building
Columbia, S. C.

DuRant, W. E,, Jr.
318 N. Main St,
Sumter, S. C.

Earle, Samuel Broadus, Jr.
Ligon & Ledbetter Bldg.
Anderson, S. C.

Epting, Carl Edward
8 South Church St
Greenville, S. C.

Espedahl, Kaare S.
4003 Linwood Rd.
Columbia, S. C.

HARDEE & VEREEN
General Contractors

Included among the proj-
ects we have completed is
Dr. J. D. Gilland office in
Conway, pictured elsewhere
in this magazine.

P. O. BOX 1666
MYRTLE BEACH, S. C.

Carolina Sheet Metal
and Roofing Company

S

ST. ANDREWS PARISH
CHARLESTON, S. C.
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Fair, Herndon M.
1226 Sumter St
Columbia, S. C.

Fant, Charles Wm.
10974 Sharpe St.
Anderson, S. C.

Freeman, Wm. Ernest, Jr.
226 W. Washington St.
Greenville, S. C.

Gates, Prof. John H.
Jersey Lane, P. O. Box 542
Clemson, S. C.

Halsey, Marion Benoit
4 Broad St.
Charleston, S. C.

Harmon, G. Thomas, III
3350 Millwood Ave.
Columbia, S. C.

Harrall, H. D,
717 W. Main St.
Bennettsville, S. C.

Hearn, Howell Reid, Jr.
1306 Main St,
Columbia, S. C.

Hemphill, Jas. Calvin
207-209 Hodges Building
Greenwood, S. C.

Holroyd, Robert Emory, Jr.

c/o Lyles, Bissett, Carlisle & Wolff
1321 Bull St.

Columbia, S. C

Hopkins, Frank V.
Box 547
Florence,

2 ISl o

Hoyt, Lew Rice
Lakeshore Drive
Columbia, S. C.

Hudson, William Manchester
396 St. John St.
Spartanburg, S. C.

James, James Francis
318 N. Main St.
Sumter, S. C,

Lafaye, George E., Jr.
1226 Sumter St,
Columbia, S. C.

Lafaye, Robert S.
1226 Sumter St.
Columbia, 8, C,

Lambert, John M., Jr.
Box 761
Anderson, S. C.

Lapham, Samuel, Jr.
17 Broad St.
Charleston, S. C.

Lee, Rudolph E.
12 Victory Ave.
Greenville, S. C.

Lineberger, John Marion
201 Allen Building
Greenville, S, C.

Little, Ralph

Box 140
Camden, S. C.
Lyles, W. G,

1321 Bull St
Columbia, S. C.

MccCall, John DeWitt, Jr.
1226 Sumter St,
Columbia, S. C.

MacDonald, C. R.
c¢/o J. E. Sirrine Co.
Greenville, S. C,

W. C. KING

General Conitractor

9 Bland Avenue
Iris Heights

SUMTER, SOUTH CAROLINA

HOUSE MOVERS
We Move Any Kind of Building
Anywhere
Brick :-: Stone :-: Block
Stucco & Frame

WE ALSO DO HEAVY HAULING
RIGGING, ERECTING & HOUSE RAISING

Salvage Building Material For Sale
Phone 2-7845

CHITWOOD
House Moving Co.

1906-8 Two Notch Rd.
COLUMBIA, SOUTH CAROLINA

CAROLINA

Wood Works, Inc.

Architectural Millwork and
Building Supplies

Phone 3758 — 915 Spring St.
ROCK HILL, SOUTH CAROLINA

FORD TILE CO.

DISTRIBUTORS & APPLICATORS OF

Aluminum Tile, Linoleum
Venetian Blinds and
Asphalt Floor Tile

ALSO EXCLUSIVE DEALER FOR
Veos Porcelain on Steel
FOR COLUMBIA
1505 Woodrow St.

Phone 4-0623
COLUMBIA, SOUTH CAROLINA

William Thomson

General Contractor

Georgetown

South Carolina

Palmetto Quarries
Company

CRUSHED GRANITE
for any construction
CONCRETE PRODUCTS

—f T~

P. O. Box 5185 — Phone 5131
COLUMBIA, SOUTH CAROLINA
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McPherson, John Alexander
408 S, Main St
Greenville, S. C.

McPherson, Ralph Harrison
408 S. Main St.
Greenville, S. C.

Oliver, C. Hardy
1226 Pickens St.
Columbia, S. C.

Petty, Walter Frazier
1226 Sumter St.
Columbia, S. C.

Rippelmeyer, Henry Andrews
1422 Gladden St.
Columbia, S. C.

Robinson, Charles Neeley
204 E. Barr St
Lancaster, S. C.

Simons, Albert
17 Broad St.
Charleston, S. C.

Singley, Heyward S.
1845 Assembly St.
Columbia, S. C.

Spellman, James Frank
23 West Prentiss St.
Greenville, S. C.

Staats, Henry P.
204 Peoples Building
Charleston, S. C.

Stork, Robert Caughman
1917 Glenwood Road
Columbia, S. C.

Stork, William, ]Jr.
813 Harden St.
Columbia, S. C.

Upshur, Robert Irving
60872 Harden St.
Columbia, S. C.

Urquhart, James B.
Palmetto Building
Columbia, S. C.

Vanston, A. Rorke
S. C. Dept. of Health
Columbia, S. C.

Voshell, Thos. Hammersly
38 Colleton Drive
Charleston, S. C.

Ward, Wm. R.
314 Franklin National Life Bldg.
Greenville, S. C.

Wolff, Louis Michael
1321 Bull St.
Columbia, S. C.

Woodward, Harold E.
24714 E. Main St.
Spartanburg, S. C.

ADDITIONAL MEMBERS SINCE
MARCH 1, 1951

James, Robert Shelton
318 N. Main St.
Sumter, S. C.

Poole, Lester B.
3350 Millwood Ave.
Columbia, S. C.

McNulty, Donald Wilbur
2817 Monroe St.
Columbia, S. C,

Richards, John G. IV
Camden, S. C.

Mitchell, John Magill, ]J.
17 Broad St.
Charleston, S. C.

ALL-STEEL BUILDINGS e DISTRIBUTORS OF STRAN-STEEL FRAMING e DESIGNERS AND FABRICATORS

N.W.TODD
Engincering & Supply Company

316 EAST BAY STREET
CHARLESTON, S C.
TELEPHONE 8467
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Southern Bell
Telephone and Telegraph
Company

BUILDERS...

ARCHITECTS plan and build for the future. Their work is essen-

tial to progress.

TELEPHONE PEOPLE have a similar purpose. The service they
provide and the facilities they build are never finished but always
growing, A sound, expanding telephone system is essential to the

general business, industrial and social progress of the area.

THE PLANS of the Architect are useless without money to trans-
late them into steel and brick or stone. Likewise, your Telephone
Company must obtain millions of dollars to buy the new equipment
and materials for telephone growth and progress. This money will
come from people with savings to invest, provided telephone earn-
ings are adequate to make investors want to put their money into
the telephone business. That is why adequate earnings are so impor-

tant to future telephone progress in South Carolina.



The above pictured Educational Building, Lutheran Church of the Incarnation
was built of

Rubble Masonry furnished by

WINNSBORO GRANITE CORPORATION
RION, S. C.
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FOR BETTER MEMORIALS

~ Winnsbore Llue Granite -

“The Silk of the Trade”




